
 KIRKLAND PARK BOARD 
Date:  September 12, 2012  
Time:  7:00 p.m. 
Place: Council Chambers, City Hall 

 
The mission of the Park Board shall be to provide policy advice and assistance 

to the Department of Parks and Community Services and City Council in order to ensure the effective provision 
of Parks and Community Services programs and facilities to the residents of the City of Kirkland. 

 
AGENDA 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
  
2. ROLL CALL 5 minutes 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 5 minutes 
 June Park Board Meeting Minutes 
 
4. ITEMS FROM THE AUDIENCE 5 minutes 
 
5. REVIEW OF ACTION ITEMS  

No items 
 
6. PRESENTATIONS 15 minutes 

City Attorney – Elections Do’s and Don’t’s 
 
7. COMMUNICATIONS 20 minutes 

a. Correspondence 
- Karen Story, Cigarette Butts 
- Tom Burns, Events at Marina Park 

b. Staff Reports 
- September update 

c. Committee Reports 
d. Comments from the Chair 

 
8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

a.  North Juanita Open Space 10 minutes 
 Topic: Receive update on North Juanita open space parcel 
 Action: Set public meeting date  
 
b.  Cross Kirkland Corridor 10 minutes 
 Topic: Receive progress update on Cross Kirkland Corridor 
 Action: Select representative for master planning consultant selection 

 
9. NEW BUSINESS  

a.  Boat Launch Use Regulations 15 minutes 
 Topic: Review draft staff proposal to revise boat launch regulations 
 Action: Discussion only 
 



September 12, 2012 
Page 2 
 
 
10. MEETING EVALUATION 5 minutes 
 
11. ADJOURNMENT Estimated meeting completion: 8:30 p.m. 

Next meeting: October 10, 2012, Council Chambers, City Hall 



 

PARK BOARD MINUTES – June 13, 2012 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The June Park Board regular meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. by Chair Sue 
Keller. 
 
2. ROLL CALL 
 
Members present: Chair Sue Keller, Vice Chair Shawn Fenn, Sue Contreras, Amy 
Johnson, Ted Marx and Adam White. 
 
Shelley Kloba participated by telephone. 
 
Rick Ockerman arrived at 7:05 p.m. 
 
Staff present: Michael Cogle, Jason Filan and Jennifer Schroder. 
 
Recording Secretary: Cheryl Harmon 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Ms. Contreras moved to approve the May minutes as presented.  Mr. White seconded.  
Motion carried (7-0). 
 
4. ITEMS FROM THE AUDIENCE 
 
Jean Guth from Kirkland Dog Off-Leash Group (KDOG) gave a status update on Jasper’s 
Park, volunteerism and fund-raising activities. 
 
5. REVIEW OF ACTION ITEMS  
 
No items. 
 
6. PRESENTATIONS 
 
Urban Forester Deb Powers presented a draft of the Urban Forest Management Plan and 
sought feedback from the Board on sections relevant to Kirkland parks. 
 
7. COMMUNICATIONS 
 
a. Correspondence 
No items. 
 
b. Staff Reports  
Ms. Schroder reported on summer recreation programming, seasonal hires, fall/winter 
brochure production, Kirkland Steppers, Juanita Friday Market, Moss Bay Divers, 
Memorial Day at the cemetery, Green Kirkland Partnership. 
 
  



 

c. Committee Reports 
Mr. Fenn congratulated Mr. Filan and staff for work at Juanita Beach Park. 
 
Mr. Marx thanked Mr. Filan for work by staff, and reported on topics including: an event 
at Fire Station 24, community awareness of water run-off, a meeting between Finn Hill 
Neighborhood Alliance and King County regarding inter-connecting Finn Hill parks, and 
Denny Creek. 
 
Ms. Johnson reported on the Lake Washington High School Loyalty Club planning a 
upcoming Green Kirkland event at South Rose Hill Park in October, and on activity at 
Marina Park. 
 
Ms. Contreras reported on Summerfest, asked questions about batting cages at Everest 
Park, and commented on Lynnwood Aquatic Center, Kudos Kirkland work at Heritage 
Park and attending a Senior Council meeting. 
 
Mr. White attended the Market Neighborhood Meeting. 
 
Ms. Kloba reported on activity with the Lakeview Neighborhood Association, attended a 
Moss Bay Neighborhood meeting, and commented on a neighbor’s positive experience at 
Phyllis Needy Houghton Neighborhood Park. 
 
d. Comments from the Chair 
Ms. Keller reported on the Park Funding Exploratory Meeting and commented on the 
Fourth of July Parade. 
 
8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 
a. Park Funding Exploratory Committee 
Mr. Cogle provided an update on the direction given by the City Council on potential 
ballot measures for Roads Maintenance, Park Operations and Maintenance and Parks 
Capital Projects. 
 
Mr. Cogle presented the three alternative park funding options considered by the Park 
Funding Exploratory Committee at its May 31st meeting and shared the next steps. 
 
b. July Park Board Tour 
Ms. Schroder shared a proposed itinerary for the Board’s July Park Board Tour to be 
taken in lieu of its regular July meeting. 
 
9. NEW BUSINESS 
 
No items. 
 
10. MEETING EVALUATION 
 
“Good meeting, let’s go home.” 
 
  



 

11. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mr. White moved to adjourn.  Ms. Kloba seconded.  Motion carried (7-0). 
 
Meeting adjourned at 9:12 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
  
Jennifer Schroder, Director  Sue Keller, Chair 
Parks and Community Services  Park Board 



1

Cheryl Harmon

From: Jennifer Schroder
Sent: Thursday, July 26, 2012 12:42 PM
To: Cheryl Harmon
Subject: FW: FW: Cigarette butts in the park

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Add under correspondence Park Board agenda 
 
Jennifer Schroder, CPRP 
Parks and Community Services Director 
505 Market Street Suite A 
Kirkland, WA 98033 
(425)587‐3301 
jschroder@kirklandwa.gov  

 
 

From: Karen Story [mailto:karen@tinyisland.com]  
Sent: Thursday, July 26, 2012 12:28 PM 
To: Jennifer Schroder 
Subject: Re: FW: Cigarette butts in the park 
 
Thanks Jenny! Sounds like good progress is being made.  
 
On 7/26/2012 11:36 AM, Jennifer Schroder wrote:  
  
  
HI Karen,    
  
Your memory is correct; we did conduct an informal survey to seek the community’s support for no smoking policy in 
parks.   The outcome was to have a department policy (not a park rule) for voluntary compliance to not smoke at park 
playgrounds.   Signs that read “This area is Tobacco‐Free”  “thank you for your cooperation”    along with the 
international sign for no smoking is now posted at city owned play areas.   
  
I will share your email with the Park Board as part of my report on the status of the volunteer no ‐ smoking compliance is 
going.   
  
We are making as a part of the contract requirement for vendors and other contractors that we engage that smoking is 
not allowed in the park. 
  
We will have this item on the September Park Board agenda, September 12,  7pm at City Hall Council Chambers.    
  
Thank you,   ‐ Jenny 
  
  



2

From: Karen Story [mailto:karen@tinyisland.com]  
Sent: Tuesday, July 24, 2012 8:58 PM 
To: City Council 
Subject: cigarette butts in the park 
  
Dear Council, 
Before each summer concert volunteers pick up any litter in Marina Park.  
We are astounded at the number of cigarette butts in the park.  
California has outlawed smoking in parks. Could Kirkland do the same? I remember a survey about this a while back. 
What were the results? 
Thanks, 
Karen Story 
9017 Slater Ave NE 
Kirkland WA 98033 
(No postal reply needed) 
  
  
Jennifer Schroder, CPRP 
Parks and Community Services Director 
505 Market Street Suite A 
Kirkland, WA 98033 
(425)587‐3301 
jschroder@kirklandwa.gov  

 
  



1

Cheryl Harmon

From: Cheryl Harmon on behalf of Jennifer Schroder
Sent: Friday, September 07, 2012 2:56 PM
To: Cheryl Harmon
Subject: FW: Marina Park

From: Jennifer Schroder  
Sent: Tuesday, August 21, 2012 3:59 PM 
To: 'leafs21@gmail.com' 
Subject: RE: Marina Park 
 
Hi Mr. Burns, thank you for your email and concern on the impact events have on the park.   I agree that Marina Park is 
often a site for community events which add to the difficulty of keeping the grass green.   I will provide the Park Board a 
copy of your email for their review and discussion on the number of events impacting Marina Park.   Currently, there is 
not a policy that gives me the authority to limit the number of events that can be approved at this park.  
 
Thank you for taking the time to email me your concerns.   – Jenny  
 
Jennifer Schroder, CPRP 
Parks and Community Services Director 
505 Market Street Suite A 
Kirkland, WA 98033 
(425)587‐3301 
jschroder@kirklandwa.gov  

 
 
From: leafs21@gmail.com [mailto:leafs21@gmail.com]  
Sent: Tuesday, August 21, 2012 9:46 AM 
To: Jennifer Schroder 
Subject: Marina Park 
 
Hello,  
As someone who uses Marina Park daily, I have to admit to being just a little discouraged by what has 
happened to it recently. There are parts of the park that simply will not recover this Summer, and some that will 
require some significant rehabilitation. I will further admit I really don't get the multitude of festivals held in the 
park. First there was "Uncorked", then "Summerfest". Does there really need to be both? I understand that 
money went to deserved organizations from money raised at these events. However you cannot deny that 
money was made by the vendors at the events as well as local businesses on the back of what is now a damaged 
gem. There is one spot of dead grass that I know was the result of cooking oil/grease being spilled on the grass, 
(my dog's nose doesn't lie).  
 
I simply do not understand how it is appropriate to facilitate for-profit entities to make money on the backs of 
the taxes that are paid for up-keep of the park. I'm sure you're going to tell me that's over oversimplifying 
things, but its not. Take a walk through the park today, you will be just a discouraged as I am, and you have the 
power to make sure it doesn't happen again......  
 
Tom Burns  
Kirkland 



7b 

 

CITY OF KIRKLAND 
Department of Parks & Community Services 
505 Market Street, Suite A, Kirkland, WA  98033  425.587.3300 
www.ci.kirkland.wa.us 

 
To: Park Board 
 
From: Jennifer Schroder, Director 
 
Date: September 7, 2012 
 
Subject: September Staff Update 

 

DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

Cross Kirkland Corridor – Acquisition Grant 
 In May, staff submitted a grant request from the Washington Wildlife and Recreation Program (WWRP) in 

the amount of $500K, for the acquisition of the Cross Kirkland Corridor.  Preliminary results from the 2012 
WWRP grants evaluation process have been released. The Cross Kirkland Corridor project ranked 2nd out of 
20 projects submitted. The project rankings will be presented to the Recreation and Conservation Funding 
Board (RCFB) at its October 17-18 meeting in Olympia. The RCFB will approve the list of projects that will 
be sent to the Governor to be included as part of the State’s budget. Final funding levels for this round of 
WWRP applications will be determined by the Legislature during the 2013 Legislative session. 

 Attached to this Staff Update is the Trails Projects Preliminary Evaluation Ranked List.   The Cross Kirkland 
Corridor project ranked second behind the Point Defiance Missing Link project.  

2013-2014 Biennium Budget Process 
 Preparation for the 2013-2014 biennium budget is underway. All departments have been instructed to 

submit a list of reductions up to 5%. For the Parks and Community Services department, 5% is 
approximately $680,000 for two years.  The City Manager’s recommendation will be presented to the City 
Council in a Budget Work Session on October 25th, 3pm-9pm, in the Peter Kirk Room. 

RECREATION DIVISION 

Recreation 
 The fall 2012/winter 2013 Recreation Brochure is online and has been delivered to over 38,000 homes.  As 

of today, there are over 2,200 enrollments with a traditional high volume of fall recreation registration 
anticipated through September. 

 At summer’s end, 2012 revenue has exceeded last year’s by almost $75,000 for the same period, with over 
$27,000 coming in August alone! A warmer and dryer August is a contributing factor for the increase. 

  JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG TOTAL 
2011 $52,919  $25,892  $267,949 $145,562 $113,264 $124,302 $51,856  $105,572 $884,317 
2012 $46,685  $30,766  $306,704 $149,658 $114,512 $121,482 $59,207  $129,998 $959,014 

variance ($6,234) $4,874  $38,755 $4,096 $1,248 ($2,820) $7,351  $27,426 $74,697 
 
North Kirkland Community Center 
 The month of August brought staff out participating in community events and programs spreading our 

enthusiasm, support, and tagline message “Experience It!”.  Staff attended two of the children’s Summer 
Concerts promoting a variety of programs including our Pee Wee and Youth Basketball leagues by offering a 
“basketball shoot” activity for the children.  Staff was also present at the evening concerts promoting 
building rentals, special events, and adult programs.  At the Juanita Neighborhood Picnic at Juanita Beach, 



September 7, 2012 
Page 2 
 

 

Kirkland Parks offered a children’s arts and crafts table, along with a “soccer shoot” activity to promote our 
Pee Wee Soccer Program. 

 The North Kirkland Community Center has been painted on the outside a beautiful new charcoal color with 
creamy white trim and eye-popping burgundy doors.  The interior is also in the process of receiving a new 
coat of paint and will be completed by the time classes resume in the fall. 

 Staff is eagerly anticipating fall and the launch of several new programs.  Sweet Dreams Yoga will be 
offered for babies and parents evenings at Heritage Hall, a new Saturday art program will be offered for 
children at NKCC, Running for Fun and Fitness for adults will split time between Everyday Athlete in Juanita, 
Heritage Hall, and the open road.  Finally, participants can now learn the Michael Jackson dance that took 
the world by storm, “Thriller,” at NKCC starting in September. 

Aquatics 
 Peter Kirk Pool ended another successful aquatics season on September 3rd. This summer, over 2,600 

registrants participated in summer programs at the pool, generating over $190,000 in revenue. 
Lifeguards at Houghton and Waverly beaches ended their season on September 3rd.  From July 1st through 
Labor Day, lifeguards educated patrons on beach safety and swimming rules, provided loaner lifejackets to 
swimmers, made daily assists and rescues preventing life-threating situations from occurring, provided first 
aid as well as assisted with daily maintenance tasks such as ensuring the sand, docks, parking lots and 
grass were free of harmful objects and trash.  

 Orca Swim Team had a successful season wrapping up on August 18th. The 192-member team finished the 
season with a Championship Meet at Lynnwood Aquatic Center. Swimmers competed in their favorite 
swimming events, swimming against all teams in the Craze Swim Team League.  

 Registration continues for the 2012 Kirkland Kids’ Triathlon being held on Sunday, September 30th. This 
non-competitive event provides an excellent opportunity for youth to experience the sport of triathlon. The 
Kids’ tri is being put on by the City of Kirkland, with the help of event sponsors TriFreaks, Kirkland 
Children’s Dentistry and Studio East.  

 Registration for City of Kirkland Youth Basketball is now open. Currently, 127 3rd-6th grade boys and girls 
are registered for the program which begins on November 26th. Practice and games are held at local schools 
within the Lake Washington School District.  

 PeeWee Basketball registration is open with 40 children ages 3-6 currently registered for the program, 
which begins on Saturdays in January at Kamiakin Middle School. PeeWee Basketball is designed to develop 
and improve preschooler’s basketball skills and techniques. This program is a great first step into preschool 
sport! 

Sports and Fitness 
 The inaugural in-house tennis camps finished out the season on a great note reaching our internal revenue 

goal of $40,000 and serving over 400 kids between two locations.  Staff has taken the last few weeks to 
speak with the tennis staff about areas of improvement for next year. 

 The fall season of our PeeWee Soccer league is slated to begin September 8th with a total of 180 children 
registered and excited to meet their coaches and learn some soccer skills! This season approximately 35 
coaches volunteered to lead teams. The season will conclude in late October. 

 The adult sports leagues Facebook page is producing a steady showing of fans with a total of 77 “likes” 
within a month’s time.  This more direct marketing power has translated directly into an increase in 
participants and awareness of our current offerings. Staff hopes to reach 100 “likes” by the beginning of 
October. 

 The year’s summer sport camp offerings produced better numbers than 2011.  The highlight of the summer 
sport camp season was the youth fencing camp held in August. In 2011, the camp had 17 participants, 
which was higher than expected for a first-time offering; this season the same camp filled completely with 
30 children registered! 

  



September 7, 2012 
Page 3 
 

 

Peter Kirk Community Center  
 The Peter Kirk Day Camp had another successful year. In the ten weeks of camp, 475 happy 7- to 11-year 

olds participated and generated over $86,000 in revenue. Program coordinators have received very positive 
feedback about this year’s program from the campers, parents and staff. 

 The Kirkland Steppers program has had a lot of fun this year on both local and destination walks. In August 
the staff took about 50 walkers to a new City of Sammamish park, Evans Creek Preserve, for a special 
destination walk. This was a great find and most of the walkers that attended have requested the program 
go back to this park in the future. 

 Fall registration is in full swing and PKCC programs are filling up. The daytime yoga class is so popular that 
a third day has been added each week. Many of the new van trips have just a few spots left. 

 PKCC was closed the last two weeks in August for annual maintenance. While closed, the floors were 
refinished, carpets and furniture shampooed, window treatments were replaced, new sinks were installed in 
the women’s bathroom, the kitchen had a deep cleaning and much more. Staff was available on site to help 
the public with questions and program registrations during the closure. 

BUSINESS SERVICES 

 The Kirkland Marina has been busy a place this past summer.  Marina Harbormasters have done an 
excellent job providing information to visitors, keeping things under control and enforcing rules on the 
docks. Staff has been working with the tour boat operators to create more fluid business opportunities 
available on the tour dock with “touch and go” charters in addition to our contracted partner Argosy 
Cruises. 

 The Juanita Friday Market continues to grow in size and popularity.  After two years in a temporary 
location, the market has moved back to its home in the parking lot adjacent to the playground.  On any 
given Friday afternoon, the popular park becomes a festival with the market featuring live entertainment, 
activities for kids and great food. The Juanita Friday Market will conclude its season October 5th. 

 September Events 
 Susan G. Komen 3-Day Walk is coming to Kirkland.  Walkers will be traveling through downtown 

Kirkland on September 15th, 9am- 1pm.  Residents are encouraged to make signs, cheer on the walkers 
and decorate. Think Pink! 

 Electric Radio-Controlled Gold Cup Boat Races:  These miniature boats may be the wave of the future. 
Duplicating the hydroplane racing with a quiet, non-polluting, motor; the “electrics”!  All boats in the 
club are 1/10-scale in size, which means they are roughly three feet long and just over a foot wide. 
They must include all of the features that the full-size version had, including engine cowlings, exhaust 
stacks and windshields. The Gold Cup tournament is a two-day event taking place at Juanita Beach on 
September 15th and 16th.  

 NW Bookfest:  Celebrate the literary arts at Northwest Bookfest, where readers, writers, publishers and 
authors connect for a jam-packed weekend of workshops, panels, classes and author readings. This 
year’s festival will be held September 22nd and 23rd indoors at Peter Kirk Community Center and outside 
at Peter Kirk Park. 

 Kirkland Triathlon: At Juanita Beach on September 30th, this year’s event will feature a sprint distance 
triathlon, duathlon, aqua-bike, and a “Try a Tri”, as well as a Tri for Kids. The Kirkland Triathlon will 
include a pre-race expo, post-race food, and more. Expect some uphills, downhills and flat sections on 
both the bike and run for a fun and challenging course.  The Kids’ Tri follows at 1pm and includes a 50-
yard swim/splash, a ½ mile bike and a 400-yard run. This non-competitive event provides an excellent 
opportunity for youth to experience the sport of triathlon! 

YOUTH & HUMAN SERVICES DIVISION 

 The We’ve Got Issues episode on teen partying is complete and should begin airing this month on the City’s 
K-Life and KGOV channels. 



September 7, 2012 
Page 4 
 

 

 The new Kirkland Youth Council (KYC) leadership team held its annual retreat on August 15th. 
 The first KYC meeting was held August 27th. The first task for the group is recruitment. They are hoping to 

add about 15 new members by mid-October.  Each candidate will participate in a small service project at 
Hopelink followed by a personal interview. 

 The summer feeding program ended on August 28th. The program ran for eight weeks and served 
approximately 300 sack lunches to school aged children Tuesdays at 132nd Square Park. 

 September marks this year’s Month of Concern Food Drive.  Two storefront drives are planned for 
September 15th and 29th.  Volunteers will be staffing two-hour shifts at all grocery stores in Kirkland.  New 
for this year is a volunteer incentive plan.  For each shift a volunteer completes, their name will be entered 
into a gift card drawing for cards donated by local restaurants.  Sign-ups can be found on the City website: 
http://www.kirklandwa.gov/depart/CMO/Neighborhood_Services/Eastside_Concern_for_the_Hungry.htm 

MAINTENANCE DIVISION 

Athletic Fields 
 Lee Johnson Field – Games continue throughout September and into mid-October. The City of Kirkland 

Parks Department softball league plays weeknights, Puget Sound Senior Baseball League sprinkles a game 
in here and there, and Kirkland Baseball Commission plays games on the weekends. Cross your fingers for 
continued dry weather!  

 Crestwoods – Lake Washington Youth Soccer Association continues to use Crestwoods for practices and 
games six days a week. Thus far the season is going very well!  

 Everest – Kirkland American Little League begins their fall ball program September 9th. Games will be played 
on Sundays on all four fields and practices will be held on three fields five nights a week. Northwest 
University’s softball program is hosting a softball event on September 15th and their softball team will be 
practicing daily as well on Field A from late August through October 15th.  This does mean Everest is at 
capacity Monday through Friday and Sundays. 

 Juanita Beach – Lake Washington Youth Soccer and Kirkland Parks soccer classes continue at Juanita 
Beach. Thus far soccer is doing great! 

 132nd Square – City of Kirkland fall soccer classes, Lake Washington Youth Soccer Association, and a select 
softball organization are currently utilizing 132nd Square fields.  

Volunteers 
 Northwest University students have returned!! Every August for the past few years, during Northwest 

University’s student “Welcome Week,” the City has been fortunate enough to receive NU students for a 
huge volunteer day. This year we had close to 200 students dedicate two hours each at Phyllis Needy Park 
in Houghton and at Peter Kirk Park. We love to be a part of this monumental week with NU. They’re a great 
group to work with and the students are always enthusiastic and very good workers. They did a fantastic 
job! Thank you, NU volunteers!  

Notes from the Field 
 The long stretch of weather without rain helped to make the end of summer a great finish for our Parks 

system.  Thousands of patrons were utilizing our waterfront parks to cool off daily.  It was great to see so 
much use. 

 The water right irrigation project continues to be a bright spot for our park system.  The ability to keep the 
waterfront parks green and healthy has been a real morale boost for staff and it’s been great for customers. 

 The budget reductions of the past four years are really starting to show in the parks system.  It’s hard to 
walk through a park and not see several items that need attention.  The “to-do” list continues to grow each 
month. 

 Excellent feedback is coming in from users of the tennis courts at Peter Kirk, Forbes Creek, and Juanita 
Beach parks.  This summer, through the City’s Capital Improvement Program (CIP), staff and contractors 
were able to repair and refinish the three locations.  Usage has noticeably increased due to their repair. 

 Work has begun on a new trail that will connect Jasper’s Park off-leash area to the street right-of-way.  
Staff anticipates the project will be completed this month.  Pictures to come in October. 



September 7, 2012 
Page 5 
 

 

GREEN KIRKLAND PARTNERSHIP 

 During the first half of 2012, volunteers clocked up 4,622 hours compared with 3,970 hours the first half of 
2011, which is an increase of over 650 hours. 

 On July 19, nine Kirkland volunteers participated with Redmond volunteers in an EarthCorps-managed 
Forest Monitoring Training that was funded through Forterra’s US Forest Service grant.  Kirkland’s Forest 
Monitoring Team has started work in Juanita Bay, Watershed, Cotton Hill, and Carillon Woods parks.  

 Native Plant Stewards (class of 2010) hosted a Nintendo group on July 25 at Juanita Bay Park. 
 Green Kirkland Steward Nona Ganz and her volunteer group continue to lead regular Thursday afternoon 

work parties at Juanita Bay Park. 
 Green Kirkland Steward Karen Story continues to lead weekly work parties at Cotton Hill Park; however, 

these were on hold July 10 to August 14. 
 The Juanita Bay Rollers (Native Plant Stewards from 2009 class) host monthly events on the 4th Saturday of 

each month. 
 Green Kirkland Steward Carol Lee Power and the Friends of Kiwanis Park continue with monthly Saturday 

work parties. 
 A Green Kirkland Partnership booth was hosted by Green Kirkland Steward Nona Ganz and June Fletcher at 

the Juanita Friday Market on August 17. 
 A Green Kirkland Partnership booth was set up by June Fletcher at the Highlands/Norkirk annual picnic at 

Crestwoods Park on August 25. Green Kirkland Steward Judi Radloff conducted tours of the Forterra/Pearl 
Jam restoration area. 

 We look forward to two United Way Day of Caring events on Friday September 21. EarthCorps will be 
hosting approximately 150 volunteers from several businesses at Carillon Woods and Forterra will be 
hosting approximately 30 volunteers at Watershed Park. Hosting two Green Kirkland Partnership Day of 
Caring events has become an annual September occurrence. 

 The following table summarizes Green Kirkland Partnership events and other activities conducted by 
volunteers in July. It includes field and administrative volunteers as well as event volunteers. 

 
Number of    
Volunteers 

 Date Park/Work 
Group 
Name Youth Adult Total Hours 

Dollar 
Equivalent1 

7/14 Kiwanis Park 
Friends of 
Kiwanis Park 4 9 13 41 886.42

7/19 

Grass lawn 
Pavilion, 
Redmond 

EarthCorps 
Forest 
Monitoring 
Training 1 8 9 31.5 681.03

7/25 Juanita Bay Park 

WNPS 2010 
Stewards with 
Nintendo 0 9 9 26 562.12

7/28 Juanita Bay Park 
WNPS 2009 
Stewards 6 3 9 28 605.36

7/31 Juanita Bay Park 
Forest 
Monitoring Team 0 5 5 10 216.20

Ongoing Administration   0 6 6 43.6 942.63

Ongoing Field Work  0 17 17 86.75 1,875.53

266.85    $5,769.29
1 Dollar Equivalent = Hours x 21.62 



September 7, 2012 
Page 6 
 

 

 
 Upcoming events for volunteers from the general public: 

 Saturday, September 8 at Kiwanis Park, 9 am to 12 pm. Contact Carol Lee Power, 425.828.4220, 
carolleepower@yahoo.com 

 Thursdays, September 13, 20, and 27 at Juanita Bay Park, 12 to 2 pm. Contact Nona Ganz, 
425.822.1618, nonaganz@frontier.com 

 Saturday, September 15 at Brookhaven Park, 9 am to 12 pm. Contact Betsy Adams, 425.587.3858, 
badams@kirklandwa.gov 

 Saturday, September 22 at Juanita Bay Park, 9 am to 12 pm. Contact JBRollers@gmail.com 
 Thursdays, October 4, 11, 18 and 25 at Juanita Bay Park, 12 to 2 pm. Contact June Fletcher, 

june@fletchersoftware.com 
 Saturday, October 6 at Kiwanis Park, 9 am to 12 pm. Contact Carol Lee Power, 425.828.4220, 

carolleepower@yahoo.com 
 Saturday October 13 at Juanita Bay Park, 9 am to 12 pm. Sign up online at www.earthcorps.org. 

Contact Chris LaPointe, chris@earthcorps.org 
 Saturday, October 27 at Juanita Bay Park, 9 am to 12 pm. Contact JBRollers@gmail.com 
 Thursdays, November 1, 8, 15, 29 at Juanita Bay Park, 12 to 2 pm. Contact Nona Ganz, 425.822.1618, 

nonaganz@frontier.com 
 Saturday, November 3 at Everest Park, 9 am to 12 pm. Sign up online at www.earthcorps.org. Contact 

Chris LaPointe, chris@earthcorps.org 
 Saturday, November 10, Arbor Day at Crestwoods Park. Volunteer planting 9 am to 12 pm; official Arbor 

Day ceremony 12 to 12:15 pm. Forterra Pearl jam Project. Sign up online at www.forterra.org Andrea 
Mojzak amojzak@forterra.org 

 Saturday, November 24 at Juanita Bay Park, 9 am to 12 pm. Contact JBRollers@gmail.com 



Trails Projects
Preliminary Evaluation Ranked List
Washington Wildlife and Recreation Program 
Fiscal Year 2014

Rank Score Number Project Name Grant Applicant Grant Request
Applicant 

Match Total Amount 
Cumulative 

Grant Request
1 of 20 59.89 12-1549D Point Defiance Missing Link Tacoma Metropolitan Park District $2,500,000 $2,500,000 $5,000,000 $2,500,000
2 of 20 53.89 12-1392A Cross Kirkland Corridor Kirkland $500,000 $500,000 $1,000,000 $3,000,000
3 of 20 53.44 12-1269D East Lake Sammamish Trail-North Sammamish 

Development
King County $500,000 $6,192,567 $6,692,567 $3,500,000

4 of 20 52.56 12-1122D Susie Stephens Trail Phase 2 Winthrop $365,000 $365,000 $730,000 $3,865,000
4 of 20 52.56 12-1429D Redmond Central Connector Phase 2 Redmond $500,000 $1,001,500 $1,501,500 $4,365,000
6 of 20 52.06 12-1240D Spokane River Centennial Trail Northwest Extension Washington State Parks and Recreation Commission $664,900 $120,000 $784,900 $5,029,900
7 of 20 51.89 12-1564D Ferry County Rail Trail Phase 2 Ferry County $35,000 $35,000 $70,000 $5,064,900
8 of 20 50.33 12-1117D Spruce Railroad Trail/Tunnel Restoration Phase 2 Clallam County $1,499,000 $1,500,000 $2,999,000 $6,563,900
9 of 20 48.94 12-1022D Heron Bluff Trail 2012 Moses Lake $197,013 $197,013 $394,026 $6,760,913
10 of 20 48.61 12-1231D Rocky Reach Trailway Phase 2 Washington State Parks and Recreation Commission $297,780 $297,780 $7,058,693
11 of 20 47.56 12-1365D Riverfront Trail Enhancement Castle Rock $334,750 $334,750 $669,500 $7,393,443
12 of 20 47.28 12-1449D Foothills Trail-Buckley to South Prairie Phase 2A Pierce County $775,195 $775,195 $1,550,390 $8,168,638
13 of 20 47.11 12-1347D Deschutes Valley Trail Tumwater $500,000 $1,762,000 $2,262,000 $8,668,638
14 of 20 46.67 12-1052D Edmonds Sunset Avenue Overlook Trail Edmonds $415,110 $415,110 $830,220 $9,083,748
15 of 20 46.56 12-1501D Olympic Discovery Trail-Salmon Creek Washington Department of Fish and Wildlife $799,785 $799,785 $9,883,533
16 of 20 44.67 12-1603A Barnes Creek Trail Acquisition Des Moines $750,000 $770,000 $1,520,000 $10,633,533
17 of 20 44.00 12-1402D Mason County Coulter Creek Trail Development Mason County $395,000 $416,000 $811,000 $11,028,533
18 of 20 43.00 12-1061A Japanese Gulch Trail Acquisition Mukilteo $1,900,000 $1,900,000 $3,800,000 $12,928,533
19 of 20 41.17 12-1129D Highway 20 Trail Paving Skagit County $45,025 $45,025 $90,050 $12,973,558
20 of 20 34.78 12-1380C Rick Tollefson Memorial Trail Jefferson County $450,000 $491,800 $941,800 $13,423,558

$13,423,558 $19,320,960 $32,744,518
08/29/12



8a 

 

CITY OF KIRKLAND 
Department of Parks & Community Services 
505 Market Street, Suite A, Kirkland, WA  98033  425.587.3300 
www.ci.kirkland.wa.us 

 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To: Park Board  
 
From: Michael Cogle, Deputy Director 
 
Date: September 6, 2012 
 
Subject: North Juanita Open Space 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board establish a public meeting date to discuss community interest and concerns 
regarding potential improvements to the North Juanita Open Space. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
In 2007 the developer of Garden Gate, a housing development directly north of the City-owned 
North Juanita Open Space, reached an agreement with the Public Works department to provide 
$43,000 towards a fund for future “pedestrian improvements” through the City property in lieu 
of completing certain off-site sidewalk improvements.  A condition of the fund is that it must be 
utilized by August, 2013.  Otherwise, the funds will be returned to the developer. 
 
About the North Juanita Open Space property (maps attached): 
 
Ownership:  Transferred to Kirkland by King County following 1988 annexation  
Size:  1.03 acres 
Characteristics:  Generally flat.  Heavily overgrown with Himalayan Blackberries. South portion 
heavily wooded. 
Sensitive Areas:  None known on site. 
Access:  Limited.  Property surrounded by single family homes. Pedestrian access only from 
south and north. 
 
Several residents of Garden Gate have expressed interest in the City completing park 
improvements to the property.  This neighborhood of Kirkland is not being met by our level of 
service goal of a park within a quarter-mile radius of each household. 
 
Staff has recently conducted some personal informal outreach to other neighbors surrounding 
the property, many of whom have expressed some level of concern about the City making 
improvements to the property.  Given the neighborhood’s possible competing interests and 
goals for the property, staff would suggest that prior to the City proceeding with planning for 
site improvements utilizing the developer’s funds that the Board host a public meeting inviting 
interested community members to share their views and help shape a plan for the future. 
 
 
 
 



Memorandum to Park Board 
September 6, 2012 
North Juanita Open Space 
Page 2 
 

G:\1Parks_admin\Park Board\parkboard 2012\8 September 12\8a1_North Juanita Open Space Board Memo Sept 2012.docx 

 

Staff suggests a few minimum goals for future improvements, as follows: 
 

1. That a pedestrian path be constructed through the site in order to provide users with 
site access and promote neighborhood connectivity; 

2. That site access accommodate necessary maintenance and emergency response 
functions; 

3. That an appropriate amount of site clearing and invasive plant removal be completed to 
improve safety and functionality of the site; 

4. That resulting improvements require minimal on-going maintenance and/or be 
supported by on-going neighborhood volunteer commitment. 

 
 
Staff will provide more information at the Board’s September meeting. 
 



  

Approximate
Scale 1:824
1 in = 69 ft 

Produced by the City of Kirkland. (c)
2009, the City of Kirkland, all rights
reserved. No warranties of any sort,
including but not limited to accuracy,
fitness or merchantability, accompany
this product. 



  North Juanita Open Space 

Approximate
Scale 1:7,026
1 in = 586 ft 

Produced by the City of Kirkland. (c)
2011, the City of Kirkland, all rights
reserved. No warranties of any sort,
including but not limited to accuracy,
fitness or merchantability, accompany
this product. 



8b 

 

CITY OF KIRKLAND 
Department of Parks & Community Services 
505 Market Street, Suite A, Kirkland, WA  98033  425.587.3300 
www.kirklandwa.gov 

 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To: Park Board 
 
From: Michael Cogle, Deputy Director 
 
Date: December 9, 2011 
 
Subject: Cross Kirkland Corridor Update 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That the Board receives a progress update on the Cross Kirkland Corridor and selects a Board 
representative to participate in the consultant selection process for Corridor master planning. 
 
 
BACKGROUND DISCUSSION:   
 
At their meeting of August 7th, the City Council received a report (attached) on planning and 
implementation efforts for the Cross Kirkland Corridor.  The Council approved the program 
recommended by staff, including moving forward with rail removal and development of the 
interim trail.  As well, the Council approved the draft scope of work for a Corridor master 
planning process.  Costs for the master plan are estimated to be from $300,000 to $500,000. 
 
Staff will be prepared to brief the Board at its September meeting on the Council’s actions and 
some potential next steps.  In preparation for the consultant selection process in the coming 
months, the Board is requested to select a representative to participate on the selection panel. 
 



 

CITY OF KIRKLAND 
Department of Public Works 
123 Fifth Avenue, Kirkland, WA  98033  425.587.3800 
www.kirklandwa.gov 

 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To: Kurt Triplett, City Manager 
 
From:  Aaron McDonald, P.E., Project Engineer 
 David Godfrey, P.E., Transportation Manager 
 David Snider, P.E., Capital Project Manager 
 Ray Steiger, P.E., Public Works Director 
  
Date: July 31, 2012 
 
Subject: CROSS KIRKLAND CORRIDOR – APPROVE PROGRAM  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
It is recommended that City Council: 
 

• Authorizes rail removal in preparation for an interim trail; 
• Approves funding, beginning in 2012, for the Cross Kirkland Corridor (CKC) rail removal 

and interim trail; 
• Authorizes design and construction of an interim trail; 
• Approve a draft Master Plan scope of work;  
• Selects a preferred funding option for the Master Plan 

 
 
BACKGROUND DISCUSSION:   
 
The CKC was acquired by the City in April, 2012, after a process that included public outreach, 
pre-purchase due diligence, and negotiations with the Port of Seattle, the former owner of the 
corridor. In April, 2011, City Council adopted an interest statement developed by the 
Transportation Commission (Attachment A) that detailed specific interests to be achieved as 
the corridor was developed.  On March 6, 2012, the Council also asked the Transportation 
Commission, in coordination with the Park Board, to develop recommendations on the Corridor 
development, public outreach and master planning processes.  
 
The development strategy currently proposed for the CKC by the Transportation Commission is 
two-phased:  the initial phase is rail removal along with design and construction of an interim 
trail to allow broad public use of the CKC.  For the first phase, staff has evaluated the costs of 
removing the existing rails and constructing an interim gravel path.  The second phase is 
implementation of a CKC Master Plan to determine the ultimate vision and development of the 
Corridor for both trail and transit. To support this second phase, the Transportation Commission 
and Park Board developed a draft scope of work (Attachment B) and a cost estimate for a 
master planning process. 
 

Council Meeting:  08/07/2012 
Agenda:  Unfinished Business 
Item #:   10. a.



Memorandum to Kurt Triplett 
July 31, 2012 
Page 6 

 
Together, rail removal, the interim trail and completing the Master Plan will support the City 
Council’s goals of Balanced Transportation, Sustainable Infrastructure and Parks Open Spaces 
and Recreational Services. 
 
Further these actions will meet several of the interests identified in the Interest Statement 
including: 
 

• Serve transportation needs of Kirkland 
• Actively use the corridor in the near future 
• Maintain the corridor in good condition 

 
Finally, these actions help meet the Goals of the City’s Active Transportation Plan, specifically 
Goal G1 which calls for development of the Cross Kirkland Corridor. 
 
At their July 26 meeting, the Transportation Commission reviewed and unanimously reaffirmed 
their support for rail removal and construction of an interim trail at this time.  They also 
unanimously reaffirmed approval of the Master Plan scope.  The Commission feels that given 
the interests of the City and the need to spend grant funds in a timely manner it is appropriate 
to move forward with rail removal and trail design/construction while or before the Master Plan 
is prepared. 
 
1. INTERIM TRAIL DEVELOPMENT: 
 
RAIL REMOVAL 
 
The rail removal phase will remove all existing rails, cross-ties, road/trail crossing slabs, and will 
include grading of the surface for trail construction.  This work will also include paving of the 
streets (9 crossing locations) where the rails are to be removed.  This work will be put out to 
bid and it is currently likely that the rail salvage value will offset the cost of rail removal, or 
possibly result in a credit depending on the scrap market prices and demand for used material 
at the time of removal.  The current cost estimate includes a substantial contingency to cover 
the risk of low scrap prices or low demand for used materials.   
 
While at least one rail removal contracting firm has a yard in the Puget Sound area, many rail 
removal contractors work on a nationwide basis.  This means that there is generally a 3 month 
period between request for bids and the date when the bids are to be returned to the City.  
This extra period allows for firms to inspect facilities and schedule their work in order to offer 
the best price to the City.  WSDOT work at NE 116th Street and I-405 is currently blocking the 
tracks as crews work on the NE 116th Street bridge over the rails.  This work is scheduled to be 
completed at the end of the year.  That need for the longer bid time and the WSDOT work both 
suggest rail removal should begin in early 2013.   
 
At meetings where the Transportation Commission has discussed rail removal, several citizens 
have expressed a need to reconsider removing the rails.  Common perceptions about leaving 
the rails in place include: the current facilities could support current or future rail traffic, 
upgrading the rails would be easier if existing rails are in place, the rails might serve as a 
redundant line for the Burlington Northern Santa Fe (BNSF) mainline and, if removed, the rails 
will never be reconstructed and therefore the corridor will never again support rail traffic. 
 



Memorandum to Kurt Triplett 
July 31, 2012 
Page 5 
 

While listening carefully to these concerns, the Transportation Commission has unanimously 
supported rail removal for the following reasons: 
 

• Over the past 3 years since the BNSF has sold the corridor to the Port, no rail operation 
has come forward with a viable plan to use the rails either now or in the future.  The 
existing rails are not adequate for anything but very low speed operations. 

• While it may be true that new rail could be installed somewhat more easily with existing 
rail, it is unlikely that new rail would be built in the next 20 years, so this benefit has 
limited value.  It is also unclear whether or not any new rail would be constructed on 
the exact alignment of the existing rail, or if double track would be installed. 

• Apparently BNSF saw limited value in the corridor as a back-up to its mainline or it 
would not have sold the eastside line.  Also, the Wilburton tunnel has been removed 
from I-405.  Without a connection across I-405, the corridor is not a redundant link.   

• It is unlikely that having the existing rail in the corridor would be the key factor in 
getting new rail at some point. 

• Removal of the rail would greatly benefit maintenance of the corridor and the surface 
water facilities that are located adjacent to it.  The Public Works Department has 
recently purchased a used pickup truck that’s equipped to run on both streets and rails, 
but it has limited usefulness compared to operating mowers and other types of 
maintenance equipment the City already has in its fleet on the rail-less corridor.  There 
are also a number of surface water maintenance concerns that will also be easier to 
address after rails are removed.  Attachment C is a map showing examples of culverts 
needing maintenance. 

• Removing the rails makes the corridor much more useable to citizens. 
• If the rails are removed, the railbed is available for construction of an interim trail with 

limited work outside the railbed. 
• Grant funding already secured for removing rails and constructing an interim trail 

requires that the funds be spent by the end of 2014.  In order to meet those deadlines, 
it’s necessary to begin the rail removal and interim work as soon as possible. 

 
CITY OF SNOHOMISH INPUT 
 
On July 31, 2012, Council received a letter from the Mayor of the City of Snohomish, written on 
behalf of the Snohomish City Council. (Attachment D)  The letter urges the Kirkland Council 
to consider several points before proceeding with rail removal on the CKC.  
  
Many of the points made in the Snohomish letter are similar to reasons previously heard by the 
Transportation Commission and others for keeping the rails in place as described above.  These 
include:  the Iowa Pacific Railroad may want to operate excursion service, the corridor is 
subject to future freight operations through rail banking, maintenance of a trail could be more 
difficult than maintenance of the existing tracks, construction could have environmental impacts 
and that there would be a number of benefits to having light rail operate on the corridor and 
connect to regional destinations. 
  
The Cross Kirkland Corridor is a rail-banked corridor.  Often when a rail corridor is sold and rail-
banked, the selling railroad retains the freight reactivation rights for the line.  GNP or its 
successors may hold those rights for the portion of the rail corridor between Snohomish and 
Woodinville.  They do not hold reactivation rights for the CKC; those rights are held by King 
County.  Therefore, even before a railroad could petition the Federal Surface Transportation 
Board (“STB”) to approve freight service, King County would have to consent or transfer the 



Memorandum to Kurt Triplett 
July 31, 2012 
Page 6 

 
reactivation rights to a railroad.  If the freight railroad were successful in petitioning the Surface 
Transportation Board, the cost of upgrading the corridor for freight use would have to be borne 
by the railroad seeking to operate on the line.   
  
Excursion rail is not within the jurisdiction of the STB.  Therefore, an excursion operation would 
not be able to operate in the corridor without approval from the City of Kirkland.  Conversations 
between the City of Kirkland and the Iowa Pacific railroad indicate that the railroad would be 
reluctant to invest in the improvements necessary to make the existing rail line serviceable for 
excursion use, but would be interested in providing such services if Kirkland would rehabilitate 
and maintain the line.  Kirkland currently has no budget for rail replacement and enhancement 
and the costs to upgrade the line would likely far exceed any potential tax revenue to Kirkland 
from an excursion train.   
  
Prior to purchase of the corridor, the City completed a Phase I Environmental review following 
industry standards.  Based on that report, there is no reason to believe that there will be 
environmental concerns with rail removal or construction of an interim gravel trail of the type 
suggested by the City of Snohomish letter. 
  
As discussed above, when the Council approved the Interest Statement it adopted a multimodal 
vision for the corridor.  In the future, Sound Transit or other transit operator may wish to use 
all or a portion of the corridor for transit.  Based on Sound Transit’s current planning, any light 
rail use of the corridor is a consideration that will take place 20 or more years in the future.  
Sound Transit’s selection of the corridor for light rail would not be based on the presence of the 
existing rails but rather on the location and functionality of the rail corridor property and its 
ability to meet the needs of light rail transit as compared to other possible alignments. 
 
INTERIM TRAIL DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION 
 
The interim trail will be a gravel surfaced facility matching the width of the existing rail bed (8 
to 10-feet wide) that can be used by walkers, wide-tire bikes, and other uses compatible with 
this type of surface.   It will provide an all-weather, crushed gravel path similar to the East Lake 
Sammamish Trail.  Geo-synthetic fabric will be used to retain the gravel where needed.  Fences 
will be installed to serve various purposes.  Split rail style fences will keep users from sensitive 
areas and chain link fence will be used in limited applications to protect users from steep slopes 
or other hazards and other wooden fencing will be used to prohibit vehicle access to the 
corridor.  Safety improvements such as signs, markings, islands and flashing beacons, as 
appropriate, will be made at grade crossings and it is possible to make an ADA compliant 
interim trail through careful specification of materials and proper construction. 
 
Design and construction of a gravel interim trail was unanimously approved by the 
Transportation Commission. 
 
PAVING THE TRAIL 
 
A paved trail continues to be evaluated and a fully paved regional trail along the entire CKC is 
the ultimate goal of the City.  However the cost of a similar width paved trail is at least three 
times the cost of the gravel trail within the current scope.  The interim trail is nearly fully 
funded by the state grant and the PSRC money.  Currently there is no identified money to pave 
the trail.  Should the proposed park levy pass, the City would be able to consider paving certain 
portions of the trail in phases.  There are several policy and logistical challenges to paving the 



Memorandum to Kurt Triplett 
July 31, 2012 
Page 5 
 

trail in the short term.  First, in order to simplify the need for drainage improvements, the trail 
must be confined to the width of the current railbed, which is primarily 8 feet in width.  Given 
the two-way pedestrian and bicycle traffic that will be on the facility, paving a trail of this width 
can be problematic because of the higher bicycle speeds that would be supported by a paved 
trail. Once constructed, a paved trail is also more difficult to move both for cost and public 
perception.  The ultimate vision of multi-modal use requires that the final paved trail be 
constructed to the left or the right of the center line of the CKC to allow enough room for transit 
use.   An interim trail would be less expensive to move and keeps all future options open, 
including paving over the interim trail.  A paved trail is more expensive, will take longer to 
complete and is more “permanent” in the mind of the public and therefore can often be difficult 
and costly to move.   
 
FUNDING AND SCHEDULE: 
 
The cost estimate for rail removal and interim trail construction is $3.6 million. Two grant 
funding sources have been secured for funding rail removal and interim trail construction, and a 
third grant application, through the State Pedestrian and Bicycle Safety Program, is under 
consideration.  Table 1 is a summary of the current funding scenario for the Project.  The 
secured Federal CMAQ grant (lines 2 and 3 in Table 1) includes a required match.  The State 
Ped/Bike Grant (lines 5 and 6 in Table 1) will require a match if the grant is awarded.   
 
Table 1 Corridor Funding 
LINE SOURCE AMOUNT STATUS 

1 Direct State Appropriation $2,000,000 Secured 

2 Federal CMAQ Grant $1,070,000 Secured 

3 Local Match for CMAQ  
Recommended source: Surface Water Reserves $203,000 Available with Council 

Approval 
4 SUBTOTAL  $3,273,000  

5 State Ped/Bike Grant $450,000 
Under consideration, funding 
determined by 2013 
legislature 

6 Local Match for State Ped/Bike Grant  
Future recommended source: REET Reserves $50,000 Available with Council 

Approval  
7 SUBTOTAL  $450,000  
8 Total  $3,773,000  

 
A preliminary project schedule (Figure 1) was developed for use by the Transportation 
Commission as they discussed their recommendations to the Council.  This schedule envisions 
various components of the development process occurring now, with some elements running 
concurrently with each other (an example would be rail removal occurring while planning and 
design for interim trail construction is underway).  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Memorandum to Kurt Triplett 
July 31, 2012 
Page 6 

 
Figure 1 Preliminary Schedule 
 

 
 
2. MASTER PLAN 
 
On March 6, 2012, City Council confirmed that the Transportation Commission should move 
forward with development of a Corridor Master Plan Scope and cost estimate.  The Commission 
conferred with the Park Board on the scope; the Commission chair met with the Park Board at 
the Board’s April and May meetings.   
 
The Commission purposefully looked at the balance between prescriptiveness within the scope 
and giving the experts freedom to help propose the best course of action for various tasks.  
Currently, the balance is away from a prescriptive scope, while still insuring that the City’s 
interests are achieved.  The Draft Scope is Attachment B. 
 
The basic elements of the scope of work are as follows: 
 

• Understand the corridor – form a comprehensive understanding of the physical nature of 
the corridor including mapping of critical areas such as streams, wetlands, and slopes. 

• Public process – A complete public process allowing for comment and approval by 
stakeholders will be a major element throughout the Master Plan development. 

• Goals/Vision – Building on the approved Corridor Interest Statement, a vision and goals 
statement will be prepared to guide and evaluate other parts of the Master Plan.   

• Design Guidelines and principles – These guidelines and principles will help translate the 
vision and goals into physical design.  Examples of elements covered in the guidelines 
could include lighting, spacing of certain amenities, how art will be integrated 
throughout the corridor, etc. 

• Develop alternatives – In this task, near-term, mid-term and long-term corridor 
alternatives will be developed.  Each alternative will have different cross sections and 
amenity packages.  Illustrations will be created to highlight the features of each 
alternative.  

• Cost estimating -- Design, construction and maintenance costs will be calculated for 
each of the alternatives in the development of alternatives task.   

• Alternative selection – The result of this task will be a preferred alternative for each time 
period -- short, mid and long-term.  This will be done using the work developed in other 
tasks, in particular, determining how various alternatives meet the goals and vision.  
This task will be a key focus of public process. 

• Implementation Plan – An implementation plan will identify likely funding and phasing 
scenarios for design and construction of preferred alternatives over time.  

 

Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1
2012 2012 2013 2013 2013 2013 2014

Rail  Removal Environmental, design, bidding
Rail Removal construction
Trail environmental
Trail design
Trail Construction

Work Item
Calendar Quarter



Memorandum to Kurt Triplett 
July 31, 2012 
Page 5 
 

The Draft Master Plan will be assembled from the component reports prepared after each task 
and will be subject to a thorough public process and review by City Council at a Council Study 
Session.  A Final Plan will be prepared based on the comments received on the Draft Master 
Plan and submitted for approval by City Council. 
 
A team of consultants from various disciplines would be hired to fulfill the scope of work.  
During meetings with the Transportation Commission and Park Board, a process for selecting a 
consultant team was discussed.  It was anticipated that staff would request and review a 
number of proposals from which staff would select two or three final teams for interviews.  A 
member of the Park Board and a member of the Transportation Commission would serve with 
staff on an interview group to select the final consultant team.  Before being undertaken, this 
process will be reviewed in more detail with Council. 
 
New information may become available during the rail removal, interim trail construction and 
other processes that may take place between now and when funding is confirmed for the 
Master Plan.  Before beginning the Request for Proposal process, the draft scope should be 
revised based on any such new information.   
 
It’s estimated that the cost of preparing the Master Plan is between $300,000 and $500,000.  
This figure is based on informal discussions with professionals who have recent experience 
preparing similar documents.  The Master Plan process would likely take 18 to 24 months to 
complete. 
 
Several options for securing funding to complete the Master Plan were evaluated: 
 

1. Repurpose existing grant funding:  Under this option, funding secured from existing 
grants would be used to fund the Master Plan and grant funds be replaced with funds 
from another source such as the Kirkland Park Levy.   This option is not viable due to 
restrictions on the scope of services for the grant already received; those grants do not 
allow expenditure of funds on general planning. 

 
2. Obtain grants specifically for funding the Master Plan:  Staff is continually looking for 

grant funding opportunities for corridor improvements including funding for the Master 
Plan.  It’s possible that such grant funding will be found but not likely because the 
majority of grant programs do not fund planning studies. 

 
3. General funds:  Given the 2013-2014 budget outlook, it is not likely that general funds 

will be available to fund the Master Plan.  A Service Package could be prepared to 
request funding, however, the budget process will not be complete until the end of 
2012, which could delay the schedule. 
 

4. Transportation CIP:  At this time the draft Transportation CIP, as reviewed by Council, 
does not include funding for the Master Plan.  Funding for the Master Plan would require 
reprioritization of funded projects that are funded by General revenues, since REET and 
impact fee revenues are not available for general planning purposes.   

 
5. King County Parks Levy:  Kirkland receives funding each year from the King County Park 

Levy.  There may be limited portions of the Master Plan work that could be funded by 
these funds.  However, specific guidelines from the County on how King County Parks 
Levy funds can be used may limit the degree to which these funds for general planning. 



Memorandum to Kurt Triplett 
July 31, 2012 
Page 6 

 
 

6. Kirkland Park Levy funding:  This may be the most likely source of funding.  If a ballot 
measure passes this fall, funds generated for non-maintenance purposes could be used 
to fund the Master Plan. 
 

Staff recommends options 5 and 6 as the method for funding the Master Plan.  If the Kirkland 
Park Levy is not successful or the King County Levy funds cannot fund the entire cost, staff will 
bring specific proposals for Options 3 and 4 to Council for consideration as part of the Budget 
and/or CIP processes. 
 
 
 
3. Conclusion 
 
Staff requests City Council’s authorization to commence with rail removal.  Staff further 
requests Council’s authorization of funding in order to immediately begin rail removal and trail 
design/construction and permitting efforts. The City portion of funding needed for work efforts 
in 2012 leading to the construction of an interim trail in 2013 is $203,000, with funding 
available from Surface Water Reserves (Fiscal Note Attachment E).  Surface Water Reserves 
are used initially because of the improved access to surface water facilities needing repair that 
will be provided through rail removal and interim trail development. 
 
Staff also requests approval of the Draft Master Plan Scope of work and using Park Levy 
funding as the source of funding Master Plan completion as appropriate.  
 



P a g e  |  1  

City of Kirkland 
Eastside Rail Corridor Interest Statement 

Adopted by the Kirkland City Council April 19, 2011 
 

Introduction 
In December 2009, the Port of Seattle purchased the Woodinville 
subdivision from the BNSF Railroad.  The Eastside Rail Corridor, 
stretching between Snohomish and Renton via Kirkland, thereby 
became a publicly-owned corridor.  The City of Kirkland has long 
been interested in the corridor as a potential facility for bicycle 
and pedestrian transportation, having identified the Cross Kirkland 
Trail1 project more than 15 years ago.    
 
With the corridor coming into public ownership, the City Council 
directed the Transportation Commission to conduct public outreach, 
then identify and document the City’s interests in the corridor.  This 
Interest Statement is the product of that work.   
 
Outreach elements included gathering comments at the 
Wednesday Market, fielding three on-line surveys, meeting with 
Boards, Commissions and neighborhood groups, walking the 
corridor, and receiving testimony at Transportation Commission 
meetings.  The 2009 Final Eastside Commuter Rail Feasibility 
Study2 prepared by Sound Transit and PSRC also served as a 
reference. 
 
This Interest Statement is not a proposal or a recommendation per 
se.  Rather, it is intended to guide evaluation of proposals for 
corridor development.  Proposals that satisfy more of the interests 
would rank more highly than proposals that satisfy fewer of the 
interests.  The conclusions at the end of this document describe the 
type of corridor development that is likely to be practical and 
meet the City’s interests given current information. 
 
Interests 

Serve Transportation needs of Kirkland  

Transportation on the corridor should be integrated with and 
support the City’s transportation goals3 to provide travel options 
within Kirkland and to points outside Kirkland.  This implies an 
interest in how and when the corridor is developed in other cities 
as well. 

Keep the corridor in public ownership 

The region has determined4 that the public interest is served by 
public ownership of the corridor, and the City of Kirkland supports 
this position.  Keeping the corridor in public ownership may require 
the City to purchase its portion of the right-of-way, and Kirkland’s 
ownership may help the City meet other interests as well.   

The Eastside Rail Corridor (black line) touches 
many neighborhoods and parks in Kirkland 

 
_____________________________________ 
A section of the right-of-way in the Highlands 
neighborhood 
 

 
Source: City of Kirkland 
_____________________________________ 
 
Council Goal concerning 
Balanced Transportation: 
 
Kirkland values an integrated multi-modal system 
of transportation choices. 
Council Goal: To reduce reliance on 
single occupancy vehicles. (September 
2009) 

ATTACHMENT A 



City of Kirkland Eastside Rail Corridor Interest Statement April 19, 2011 

P a g e  | 2 

Actively use the corridor in the near future  

Because the corridor is a valuable asset that could be used to 
transport people, allowing it to remain unused or undeveloped has a 
high opportunity cost.  The longer it is not used, the more resistance 
may be encountered toward any particular use.   

Maintain the corridor in good condition 

The corridor should be maintained to protect its value and the value 
of adjacent properties.  Proper operation of drainage facilities, 
prevention of encroachment, and the preservation of structures and 
crossings are examples of ongoing maintenance needs.  

Contribute to economic sustainability 

Development of the corridor should be done in a cost-effective 
manner and should consider the short- and long-term costs of 
construction, maintenance, and operation.  Development should 
support current and future plans for economic and neighborhood 
development. 

Connect Totem Lake 

Because of the corridor’s proximity to the Totem Lake Urban Center5, 
it has the potential to help connect Totem Lake to the rest of the city 
and the region.   

Protect neighborhood feel and atmosphere 

Development of the corridor should allow for access across and along 
the corridor and not create barriers within or between 
neighborhoods.  Residential neighborhoods should be protected from 
any excessive noise and safety impacts caused by corridor uses.  
Development of any trailheads, transit stations and/or parking 
locations should consider and minimize impacts to neighborhoods.  
The corridor is adjacent to several parks, schools and other amenities.  
These facilities should be protected appropriately as the corridor is 
developed. 

Plan for a multi-use facility 

In the long term, transit, pedestrians and cyclists should be able to 
simultaneously travel safely and efficiently in the corridor.  Planning 
or implementing one transportation mode must not foreclose future 
corridor use by another mode.  Additionally, underground utilities 
that currently use and will continue to use the corridor6 must be 
considered.  Freight operations may be considered along the 
corridor, but there does not appear to be much commercial interest in 
freight rail service within Kirkland.    
  

The existing corridor contains many drainage 
facilities that require regular maintenance. 

 
Source: City of Kirkland 
_____________________________________ 
 
The Burke-Gilman trail in Seattle is on an 
abandoned railroad right-of-way. 

 
Source: King County 
_____________________________________ 
 
This area in the Houghton neighborhood 
contains wetlands. 

 
Source: City of Kirkland 
______________________________ 
 
A shared rail and trail facility  

  
Source: Marin County Bicycle Coalition 
 



City of Kirkland Eastside Rail Corridor Interest Statement April 19, 2011 

P a g e  | 3 

Serve the transportation needs of pedestrians and bicyclists  

A bicycle and pedestrian transportation facility should allow all-
weather, day and night use.  It should be sized to allow simultaneous 
safe passage for both pedestrians and bicyclists of all skill levels.  Its 
development should include protection of existing connections and 
include new connections to the City’s streets and trails.  The Active 
Transportation Plan7 has a list of such connections. 

Design Transit to efficiently move people 

Successful transit systems must have certain characteristics. Service 
should be frequent, available most of the day, operate between 
desirable destinations, be easily accessible by potential riders and 
offer reasonable travel speeds.  The best choice of transit technology 
may vary, with one system best in the shorter term and another better 
in the longer term.  The viability of transit in the corridor should be 
compared to other options.8 

Plan any transit use in close consultation with the City of Kirkland. 

Locating transit stations and associated parking and feeder bus 
connections has major short- and long-term impacts on the surrounding 
neighborhoods and on the transportation network.  A process to 
determine station locations should include extensive work with 
neighborhood groups, appropriate Boards and Commissions, and the 
City Council. 

Consider grade-crossing delay and safety 

Crossings must provide a reasonable level of safety and convenience 
for both users of the corridor and for street traffic.  Design of the 
corridor should consider the potential time delays and safety concerns 
for all users of the corridor and facilities that intersect it.   

Disclose and mitigate environmental impacts  

Develop the corridor in a way that meets the City’s goals for 
environmental sustainability.  Prior to any development of the corridor, 
a complete environmental review should be conducted to identify and 
disclose impacts and to propose mitigations for those impacts.  Noise, 
air quality, surface water and sensitive areas are topics that typically 
require analysis in an environmental review.   
 
Conclusions 
 
By its nature, an interest statement does not establish specific positions 
on issues.  Instead it describes interests, which could be met in a 
variety of ways.  The purpose of these conclusions is to demonstrate 
how the interests described above could be met, to varying degrees, 
by a range of development options.   
 
Ultimately, the City’s interests would be met by implementing a 
welcoming, transportation-oriented facility for pedestrians and bicyclists, coupled with a high-capacity 
transit system that connects Kirkland to the region.   
 

These photos illustrate different types of 
transit.  How they might help meet 
Kirkland’s interests on the corridor would 
depend on a number of factors.   
 
Heavy rail:  Sound Transit Sounder 

 
Source: Railpictures.net Image © PNWRailfan 
 
Electric Light Rail: Sound Transit Link 

 
Source: lisatown.com 
 
Diesel multiple unit: DMU in service in Australia 

 
Source: thetransportpolitic.com 
 
Bus Rapid Transit: Community Transit Swift 

  
Source: blogs.seattleweekly.com 
 



City of Kirkland Eastside Rail Corridor Interest Statement April 19, 2011 

P a g e  | 4 

City of Kirkland Transportation Commission 
The City of Kirkland Transportation 
Commission is made up of seven members 
appointed by the City Council to four-year 
terms.  The Commission meets every month 
to make recommendations on 
transportation policy to the City Council.  
Visit the Commission webpage where you 
can join the Transportation Commission List-
Serve and automatically receive e-mail 
updates on the Commission’s activities.    
 

Commission members: 
Donald Samdahl, Chair 
Joel Pfundt, Vice Chair 

Morgan Hopper 
Tom Neir 

Thomas Pendergrass 
Sandeep Singhal 

Michael Snow 
Carl Wilson 

____________________________ 
 

Summary of interests 
• Serve transportation needs of Kirkland  
• Keep the corridor in public ownership 
• Actively use the corridor in the near 

future  
• Maintain the corridor in good condition 
• Contribute to economic sustainability 
• Connect Totem Lake 
• Protect neighborhood feel and 

atmosphere 
• Plan for a multi-use facility 
• Serve the transportation needs of 

pedestrians and bicyclists  
• Design transit service to efficiently 

move people 
• Plan any transit use in close consultation 

with the City of Kirkland 
• Consider grade crossing delay and 

safety 
• Disclose and mitigate environmental 

impacts  

The main focus for development of the corridor in the short term 
should be on a trail.  A paved, accessible, bicycle and pedestrian 
trail would be far less expensive than a high-capacity rail or bus 
system and would require a less extensive planning process than 
would a transit option.  However, it is important that trail planning be 
done with rail compatibility --that would meet Kirkland’s interests-- as 
the long-term goal. 
 
Due to its poor physical condition, the current infrastructure in the 
corridor is not capable of supporting rail traffic that would offer a 
viable transportation option.  If rail were to be located on the 
corridor, a safe, fully-featured, high-capacity rail system – similar to 
Link Light Rail—is perhaps the ideal option.  A high-capacity rail 
system would require a great deal of careful planning to meet 
Kirkland’s interests.   
 
Because of its high cost and Sound Transit timing, it is not likely that 
regional rail transit would be in operation before 2030.  Moreover, 
the Eastside Rail Corridor may not be the best alignment for such a 
route.  In the shorter term, there may be less expensive corridor transit 
options that could be developed, such as bus rapid transit linking the 
South Kirkland Park & Ride and Totem Lake.   
 
While freight operations may be part of a future rail corridor, there 
does not appear to be much current commercial interest in freight rail 
service within the city.  It is difficult to conceive of freight rail 
operations that would meet many of Kirkland’s interests.  
 
The Eastside Rail Corridor is a transportation facility that represents 
enormous opportunity for the City of Kirkland and the region.  
Kirkland is fortunate to have such a facility within its boundaries and 
should strive to see that its interests are met during development of 
the corridor. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                 
1 The Cross Kirkland Trail was originally envisioned as a trail that would operate beside what was at the time an 
active railroad corridor. 
2 2009 Final PSRC and Sound Transit BNSF Eastside Commuter Rail Feasibility Study, 2009 Puget Sound Regional 
Council  http://www.psrc.org/transportation/bnsf   
3 City of Kirkland Council Goals.  http://www.ci.kirkland.wa.us/Assets/City+Council+Goals.pdf  
4 BNSF Corridor Preservation Study, Final Report May, 2007 Puget Sound Regional Council. Page 7.  
http://www.psrc.org/assets/3176/_07-20_BNSFfinalreport.pdf  
5 In cooperation with member cities, Puget Sound Regional Council has designated a number of Urban Centers where 
regional growth is to be targeted.  Totem Lake is the only Urban Center in Kirkland.  Downtown Bellevue, downtown 
Redmond and Overlake are examples of other nearby Urban Centers. 
6 Puget Sound Energy and Cascade Water Alliance are examples of current and potential users respectively. 
7 More People, More Places, More Often, an Active Transportation Plan City of Kirkland, March 2009.  Page 100.  
http://www.ci.kirkland.wa.us/depart/Public_Works/Transportation___Streets/Active_Transportation_Plan.htm  
8 Ridership on existing King County Metro routes could be a reasonable benchmark.  The proposed Bus Rapid Transit 
(BRT) System on I-405 could also be compared. 

http://www.ci.kirkland.wa.us/depart/Public_Works/Committees___Commissions/Transportation_Commission/Transportation_Commissioners_Background.htm#Don Samdahl
http://www.ci.kirkland.wa.us/depart/Public_Works/Committees___Commissions/Transportation_Commission/Transportation_Commissioners_Background.htm#Joel Pfundt
http://www.ci.kirkland.wa.us/depart/Public_Works/Committees___Commissions/Transportation_Commission/Transportation_Commissioners_Background.htm#Tom Neir
http://www.ci.kirkland.wa.us/depart/Public_Works/Committees___Commissions/Transportation_Commission/Transportation_Commissioners_Background.htm#Tom Pendergrass
http://www.ci.kirkland.wa.us/depart/Public_Works/Committees___Commissions/Transportation_Commission/Transportation_Commissioners_Background.htm#Sandeep Singhal
http://www.ci.kirkland.wa.us/depart/Public_Works/Committees___Commissions/Transportation_Commission/Transportation_Commissioners_Background.htm#Michael Snow
http://www.ci.kirkland.wa.us/depart/Public_Works/Committees___Commissions/Transportation_Commission/Transportation_Commissioners_Background.htm#Carl Wilson
http://www.psrc.org/transportation/bnsf
http://www.ci.kirkland.wa.us/Assets/City+Council+Goals.pdf
http://www.psrc.org/assets/3176/_07-20_BNSFfinalreport.pdf
http://www.ci.kirkland.wa.us/depart/Public_Works/Transportation___Streets/Active_Transportation_Plan.htm


Draft Cross Kirkland Corridor Master Plan Scope of Work  
June 26, 2012 

 
Purpose 
 
On April 13, 2012, the City of Kirkland purchased the Cross Kirkland Corridor, 5.75 miles of the 
former Burlington Northern Santa Fe (BNSF) rail line in Kirkland.  A Master Plan is needed to 
help collect, develop, understand and put into context a number of facts, ideas and opinions 
about the Corridor.  The resulting plan will be a practical reference and guide which charts the 
course of facility development into the future.   
 
Background 
Almost 20 years ago Kirkland began to pursue the Cross Kirkland Trail.  This project was set 
aside after it became clear that the BNSF Railway was not interested in partnering on a rail/trail 
concept.  King County undertook purchase of the entire “Woodinville Subdivision” rail line from 
Renton to Snohomish in 2005 when the BNSF signaled its interest in selling  the corridor.  In 
2009 several entities including King County, the Port of Seattle, PSE, and the City of Redmond 
entered into a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) which resulted in the Port of Seattle 
owning the corridor, with the intent that other entities would purchase various interests for 
various portions of the property.   
 
Given the terms of the 2009 MOU, Kirkland anticipated a regional process to discuss how the 
Eastside Rail corridor should be developed.  In preparation for such a process an set of interests 
was developed.  In April of 2011 the Interest Statement was approved by the City Council.   
This interest statement clearly lays out a vision for a multi-modal transportation facility. 
By 2011, full consummation of the MOU had not been completed; notably the County had not 
purchased the corridor in Kirkland.  Subsequently, the City of Kirkland successfully negotiated 
with the Port to purchase a 5.75 mile long section of the Corridor in Kirkland.  The purchase 
was completed on April 13, 2012. 
 
Scope of Work 
General comments 
All products should be presented in web, electronic and hard copy formats and will be made 
available to the public.  It is anticipated that the products of certain tasks will be chapters or 
appendices in the final report and should be formatted appropriately.  The following tasks are 
not necessarily consecutive; some may happen together or some tasks may be completed 
before tasks with lower numbers. 
 
Task 1 Project Management 
Provide regular updates on progress.  Develop and maintain a schedule and progress made 
toward key events.  Implement project management techniques to insure progress toward 
completion within schedule and budget. 

ATTACHMENT B 



Draft Cross Kirkland Corridor Master Plan Scope of Work 
May 1, 2012 

Page 2 
Product: Schedules and updates as appropriate and monthly at a minimum. 
 
Task 2 Understanding the corridor 
Collect and evaluate existing information and gather additional information as needed to form a 
comprehensive understanding of the physical nature of the corridor.  A partial list of existing 
information available from the City includes: 

A. Corridor survey data: 
1. Record of survey 
2. Refined topographic data in Autocad format 
3. 3D laser scanning data 
4. 360º photos viewable with free proprietary browser plug-in 

B. Phase 1 Environmental report following ASTM standards, completed March 19, 2012. 
C. Railroad valuation maps 
D. GIS data including city owned utility data, sensitive areas, trail crossings 

Identify and map critical areas including streams, wetlands, and slopes which will impact 
development of the Corridor.  Determine the locations of private utilities as appropriate. 
Understanding the current and planned land use context adjoining the corridor for purposes of 
determining how the corridor can support those land uses 
Product: Memo describing critical issues for corridor development such as narrow corridor 
width, sensitive areas, surface water features, etc 
 
Task 3 Design and carry out Public process 
Develop a public process plan that will allow meaningful input throughout the Master Plan 
process.  Public process will be required development of the vision and goals, prior to the 
development of alternatives, to vet the alternatives and identify the preferred alternatives, to 
review the Draft Master Plan, and to review the Final Master Plan. At a minimum, the following 
groups (listed in no particular order) will require briefing and involvement in the process: 
 

City Council  Transportation Commission 
Park Board Advocacy groups 
Sound Transit Neighborhood Associations 
Adjacent property owners Groups representing business interests 
Neighboring cities  King County agencies including Metro and Parks 

 
The various groups will be involved to varying extents and at different points in the process.  
Public process should be designed using International Association for Public Participation 
methods.  A robust web based comment method for products of various tasks should be 
included in the public process.  It is important that all relevant documents are available to the 
public throughout the development of the Plan. 
Product: A memo describing a Plan and schedule for Public Process in all other Tasks, 
including an explanation of the principles that underlie the selected processes. 
  



Draft Cross Kirkland Corridor Master Plan Scope of Work 
May 1, 2012 

Page 3 
 
Task 4 Goals/vision 
Using the Interest Statement as a starting point, and considering Council Goals, Comprehensive 
Plan Goals and Active Transportation Plan Goals, a vision and a set of goals for corridor 
development will be prepared.  These will be used as guidance for the rest of the process and 
serve as a key touchstone for developing and evaluating alternatives.  The development of the 
goals and vision will be a key focus of public process. 
Product: A document that summarizes the vision and goals for the corridor. 
 
Task 5 Design guidelines and principles. 
Develop a set of guidelines and principles that can be used by designers as the corridor is 
developed.  These guidelines and principles will help translate the vision and goals into a 
physical design.  Examples might include spacing of certain amenities, integration of art, trail 
head designs, fencing guidelines, lighting guidelines, dynamic envelopes of transit, etc.  This 
task is not meant to develop a complete list of guidelines, but rather to identify the main 
elements that will put constraints on alternatives. 
Product: A document that summarizes the guidelines and principles. 
 
Task 6 Develop potential alternatives 
Based on the results of Tasks 4 and 5, alternative development plans will be prepared for three 
time periods; 1 to 5 years, 5 to 10 years and beyond 10 years.  For each time period, two 
alternates will be developed.  It is expected that the alternatives will have less detail the farther 
they are in the future. The alternatives will encompass different cross sections and different 
packages of amenity elements.  Access points and implications for land use changes will also be 
evaluated.  Environmental process implications will be developed for each alternative.  The 
selection of the alternatives will be a key focus of public process. 
Product:  Memorandum describing a set of trail/transit cross-sections, documentation of the 
selection process and a review of why the selected options were chosen.  Also includes draft 
illustrations of proposed sections.   
 
Task 7 Develop cost estimates for various cross sections  
Prepare a cost estimate including design, construction and maintenance costs for each of the 
alternatives developed in Task 6.  This work will include identifying uniform sections of the 
corridor and finding representative unit costs for each section and each alternative.   Any 
additional costs such as boardwalks, bridges, signals, crossing improvements, etc. should also 
be added to the estimate. 
Product:  Memorandum describing costs, and methods used to establish the costs.    
 
Task 8 Alternative selection 
Based upon information developed in previous Tasks, select preferred alternatives for each time 
period.  The selection of the preferred alternatives will be a key focus of public process. 



Draft Cross Kirkland Corridor Master Plan Scope of Work 
May 1, 2012 

Page 4 
Product:  Memorandum describing the preferred alternatives, documentation of the selection 
process and a review of why the selected options were chosen.   
 
Task 9 Implementation Plan 
Prepare a plan that identifies likely funding and phasing scenarios for design and construction of 
preferred alternatives over time.  An initial plan for development should be described.  An 
important element in this work will be examining how various transit modes are likely to be 
implemented in the corridor.  The implementation plan should identify significant constraints, 
obstacles and risks to various alternatives. 
Product:  Memorandum describing funding and phasing.    
 
Task 10 Draft Plan 
The draft plan will summarize of the work completed in Tasks 1 through 8 in a single document.  
A thorough public review will include a review by the City Council at a study session.   
Product: A draft document with high quality presentation and graphic elements. 
 
Task 11 Final Plan 
Based on the  comments and recommendations on the Draft Plan, prepare a Final Plan. 
Product: A final document, to be adopted by Transportation Commission, Park Board and City 
Council.  The final plan shall be presented in electronic and web-based versions, with limited 
hard copies. 



§̈¦405

§̈¦90

§̈¦405

UV520

UV522

UV9

Produced by the City of Kirkland.
© 2010, the City of Kirkland, all rights reserved.

No warranties of any sort, including but not limited to accuracy, 
fitness or merchantability, accompany this product.

Vicinity Map
0 10,000 20,000 30,000

Feet

0 1,200 2,400 3,600
Feet

Railroad ROW Culvert Locations

9

8

6

4

3

2
1

38
37

36
35
34

33

31

3029
28

27

26

24

23

2221
20

19
18

1716

14
13

12

11

10

7
5

32

25

15

Crack Inlet Pipe - 24" Concrete

Culvert At Outfall 2-3' Pipe
Sections Are Seperated And

There Is Erosion At Outfall

Eroded Outfall And Crushed 
Pipe At Intake/Inlet End

Debris In Pipe Inlet And Outfall Restricted

Intake Restricted With Debris
Offset With I&I

Intake And Outfall Blocked 
Debris In Pipe Belly In Pipe - Offset Joints

Intake And Outfall Full Of Debris

Broken Pipe At Joint Offset

24" Culvert 100% full Of Debris 24" Concrete Pipe
75% Full Of Debris

Pipe Needs Replacement - 24"
Concrete - Inlet & Outfall

Clogged - Roots - Crushed Pipe
Offset At 40.8 feet - Outfall Is Plugged
Roots, Offset, Broken Pipe

Outfall Clogged - Offset Joints - Hole In Pipe

Pipe Change - Bad Offset - I&I - Debris In Pipe

Intake & Outfall Full - Offset At 6 Feet
Inlet Pipe Buried - Debris In Pipe

Broken
Joint

Erosion At Outfall
Debris At Intake

Offset Joint

Outfall Buried - Debris In Pipe
Not Able To See In Pipe

Roots In Pipe - I&I - Debris In Pipe - Offset Joints Outfall Erosion - Need Quarry Spalls Or Divert Pipe

12" Concrete - Full Of Debris
24" Steel Pipe - Full Of Debris

Two Culverts - Both Have Blockages And Debris

12" Concrete to 12" Poly
Pipe Blockage At Both Ends
Unable to Video

Needs CleaningOutfall Submerged

12" Concrete - Blockage In Pipe

Concrete Pipe Completely Submerged At Inlet And Outlet 12" CMP - Ditching Clean
Up Required - Pipe Full
Of Debris - Damage
At Both Ends Of Pipe

24" Concrete Pipe Full Of Debris
Offset Sections In Pipe

Ditching Both Ends. Debris In Pipe Buried
Outfall

Ditching At Inlet 
And Outfall Offset 
Joint
Broken Pipe

Ditching At Intake And Outfall - Debris In Pipe - Offset Pipe
Ditching At Inlet
And Outfall
Pipe Full Of Debris

Debris In Pipe - Ditching At Inlet - Blocked By Rock At Outfall

Debris In CB
Intake Blocked
Needs Ditching

Ponding - Pipe Needs To Be Installed
- Ditching Required North And

South On West Side Of Tracks.

Points

Totem 
Lake

Old 
Redmond

12
4t h

14
0 th

40th

143rd

13
7th

Slater

Central

Ju
an

ita 
Woo

din
vill

e

Juanita

Northup

132nd

145th

72n
d

40th

14
8 th

70th

Simonds

La
ke

vie
w

12
0t h

1 3
4t h

11
6 th

131
st

144th

68th

13
2n

d

12
4th

143rd

124th

14
8th

98th

10
0t h

80th

116th

Ma
rk

et

1 3
2n

d

UV908UV520

UV202

UV520

UV908

§̈¦405

§̈¦405

-Location: \\SRV-GISF01\Vol1\PW\Mxds\SurfaceWater\Maintenance\BobbiWallace\Nov2010\RR_Survey_Map_1.mxd
-Print Date: 12/6/2010









ATTACHMENT E

FISCAL NOTE CITY OF KIRKLAND

Date

2,805,4313,376,431

2012 Est Prior Auth.Prior Auth. Revised 2012Amount This
2011-12 Additions End Balance

Description

368,000Surface Water Construction

End Balance

N/A0 203,000

Prepared By Neil Kruse, Senior Financial Analyst August 1, 2012

Other Information

Other Source

Revenue/ Exp 
Savings

Source of Request

Description of Request

Ray Steiger, Public Works Director

Reserve

Request for funding of $203,000 for the Cross Kirkland Corridor project from the Surface Water Construction Reserve to provide local 
match funding for a federal CMAQ grant.

Legality/City Policy Basis

Recommended Funding Source(s)

Fiscal Impact
One-time use of $203,000 from the Surface Water Construction Reserve.  This reserve is able to fully fund this request.

2011-12 Prior Authorized Use of this reserve: $218,000 for Totem Lake Flooding and $150,000 for Billy Creek Ravine 
Stabilization.

2012
Request Target2011-12 Uses



9a 

 

CITY OF KIRKLAND 
Department of Parks & Community Services 
505 Market Street, Suite A, Kirkland, WA  98033  425.587.3300 
www.kirklandwa.gov 

 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To: Park Board  
 
From: Mike Metteer, Business Services Manager 
 Michael Cogle, Deputy Director  
 Jennifer Schroder, Director  
 
Date: September 5, 2012 
 
Subject: Boat Launch Use Regulations 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That the Park Board review and comment on a draft staff proposal to revise certain sections of 
the Kirkland Municipal Code pertaining to use of the community boat launch facility. 
 
BACKGROUND:   
 
Prior to 1988, the Kirkland boat ramp was free of charge and open to all.  This free and easy 
access resulted in such high use that it was not uncommon to come south into Kirkland from 
Juanita and find oneself stuck in a line of boaters at the top of Market Street.  Parking for boat 
trailers also became unmanageable at times due to the high usage, and boaters often 
complained about the long waits to launch and load their boats during peak summer times.  A 
survey of boat launch users during this time period revealed that nearly 70% were not Kirkland 
residents. 
 
Based on these negative impacts to traffic, parking, downtown businesses, and surrounding 
residential neighborhoods, the City initiated a system in 1988 whereby use of the boat launch 
during peak boating season (April 1st – October 31st) required purchase of a boat launch access 
card.  A differential pricing structure was enacted to provide Kirkland residents with a 
discounted rate. 
 
These regulations were incorporated into the Kirkland Municipal Code, with relevant sections 
noted below: 
 

14.36.110 Boat launch ramp. 
Use of the public boat launch ramp installed within the Market Street street end shall be 
subject to the provisions of Sections 14.36.110 through 14.36.160 of this chapter.  
14.36.120 Boat launch ramp—Hours of operation. 
The launch ramp shall be open for use between five a.m. and ten p.m. each day 
between April 1st and October 31st, inclusive 
 



Memorandum to Park Board 
September 5, 2012 
Boat Launch Use Regulations 
Page 2 

14.36.130 Boat launch ramp—Limitation on length of boats. 
Between April 1st and October 31st, use of the launch ramp shall be limited to boats 
twenty-four feet or less in length. 
 
14.36.140 Boat launch ramp—Fee for use. 
Between April 1st and October 31st, inclusive, of each year, the launch ramp may be 
used only by persons who have paid to the city an annual fee with distinct pricing for 
residents, nonresidents and commercial use. The fee amounts shall be established by 
the director of parks and community services by department regulation.  
 
Upon payment of the annual fee, the city shall issue an access card enabling the holder 
thereof to open the access device installed within the launch ramp. The director of parks 
and community services is directed to establish, by department regulation, a one-time-
use fee along with a deposit charge with strict limits being placed upon how many times 
an individual may use a single-use pass. At all other times during the year, the launch 
ramp shall be available for use at no charge. 
 
14.36.150 Boat launch ramp—Unlimited hydroplane races. 
On any day when unlimited hydroplane races are being held on Lake Washington, the 
launch ramp may be used after three p.m. only for the removal of boats from the water 
and loading onto boat trailers.  
 
14.36.160 Boat launch ramp—parking of boat trailers. 
Persons using the launch ramp shall park their empty boat trailers only in parking places 
designated and signed for boat trailer parking. It is unlawful for any person to park a 
boat trailer in any other parking space. Boat trailers shall not be parked on the “Waverly 
Site” except in spaces designated and signed for boat trailer parking.  

 
Over the past 24 years, the number of boat access cards sold has been very consistent.  On 
average, 790 seasonal access cards are sold each year, as well as about 100 single-use cards.  
Each year the ratio between resident and non-resident users has also remained relatively 
consistent at 65% resident and 35% non-resident (pre-2011 annexation).  This is in stark 
contrast to usage prior to implementation of the pass card system in which nearly 70% of users 
were non-residents.  
 
Overall, the boat launch system has effectively resolved the problems previously associated with 
the facility.  Traffic congestion has been reduced, parking demand has been reduced, and 
negative impacts to downtown businesses and nearby residents have been resolved.   
 
While ensuring that these improvements to the boat launch facility continue for the long-term, 
staff has also encountered two issues for further improvement to the boat launch operation. 
 
Identified Challenges 
 
Customer inconvenience 
Customers desiring to purchase an access card are required to come to the Parks office during 
business hours.  The majority of the boat launch use is in the evening and on weekends when 
the Parks office is closed.  Boaters without a card arriving after business hours do not have 
access to the boat launch.  Staff has received numerous calls over the years reporting a boater 



Memorandum to Park Board 
September 5, 2012 
Boat Launch Use Regulations 
Page 3 

refusing to move their boat from blocking the launch until someone loans them a card. This is 
frustrating for those who have paid their fee and for the boater left with no other option.    

 
Staff reductions 
With budget and staffing cuts over the years, the parks office is limited to one front desk 
person, which provides challenges in being able to accommodate walk-in customer transactions, 
particularly those which are time-intensive like issuing boat launch access cards.  We continue 
to explore processes which streamline work tasks while still providing good customer service.     
 
Proposed Solutions 
 
Single Use Pay Station 
Staff proposes purchase and installation of a self-serve pay station at the boat launch. The cost 
for this is estimated at $17,000, with ongoing operating costs of approximately $1,350 per year.  
Boaters would have the opportunity to simply pay a fee at a pay station allowing access to the 
boat launch.  This would augment the annual pass card system, allowing infrequent users to 
access the launch on an as-needed basis without having to purchase an access card at the 
Parks office.  Frequent users would still have the opportunity to purchase an annual pass. 
 
Remove Limitation on Boat Length 
Staff is also proposing eliminating the ordinance restricting boats to 24-feet or less in length 
from using the boat launch during the peak boating season.  When the ordinance was first 
written, it was decided that larger boats took longer to launch.  There were issues with long 
lines prior to 1989, which this ordinance addressed.  Since then, boat trailer technology has 
advanced to allow larger boats to launch in generally the same amount of time, and overall use 
of the boat launch has stabilized to the extent that long lines are the exception rather than the 
norm.  
 
As a practical matter, with installation of a single use pay station staff would be unable to verify 
boat length as is the current practice when reviewing boat registration documentation in the 
office prior to issuing an access card. 
 
Fee Revisions 
Staff recommends a corresponding revision to current boat launch fees to reflect 
implementation of a pay station.  In establishing fees, staff has reviewed those charged by 
surrounding jurisdictions for boat launch use (in some cases, fees collected are for boat trailer 
parking associated with the boat launch).  See the attached chart for a comparison.  The 
tentative proposal for 2013 fees is shown on the table below.  Note that boat launch fees have 
not been increased since 2007. 
 
Current fees      Proposed fees for 2013 
  
Resident Annual Access Card $35  
    

Resident Annual Access Card  $40 

Non-resident Annual Access Card $70 
   

Non-resident Annual Access Card $80
  

Single use Access Card $18   
   

Single use via Pay Station $12  
(or $6 each way) 

 
 



Memorandum to Park Board 
September 5, 2012 
Boat Launch Use Regulations 
Page 4 

Next Steps 
 
If the Board concurs with the draft proposal, staff will conduct a survey of boat launch users 
and provide a report at the Board’s October meeting, including a final staff recommendation for 
Board consideration. 
 
 
 
Attachment 
 
 



2012 Boat Launch Fees on Lake Washington

Weekday Fee Weekday Fee Weekend Fee Weekend Fee Annual Pass  Annual Pass  Commercial Year Round
City Resident Non-Resident Resident Non-Resident Resident Non-Resident Annual Pass Use Fee
Bellevue $12.00 $12.00 $13.00 $13.00 $121.00 $152.25 $280.00 Yes
Kenmore n/a n/a n/a n/a $35.00 $35.00 $35.00 Yes
Mercer Island $11.00 $11.00 $11.00 $11.00 $40.00 $40.00 $40.00 Yes
Renton $10.00 $20.00 $10.00 $20.00 $50.00 $100.00 $100.00 Yes
Seattle $10.00 $10.00 $10.00 $10.00 $150.00 $150.00 $150.00 Yes
Kirkland $18.00 $18.00 $18.00 $18.00 $35.00 $70.00 $200.00 No

Proposed 2013 $12.00 $12.00 $12.00 $12.00
Kirkland Fee (or $6 each way) (or $6 each way) (or $6 each way) (or $6 each way) $40.00 $80.00 $200.00 Yes


	1 KIRKLAND PARK BOARD Agenda Sept 12
	AGENDA
	a. Correspondence
	b. Staff Reports
	- September update
	c. Committee Reports
	d. Comments from the Chair


	3_ParkBoard_Minutes_June 13 2012 draft
	7a1_Story correspondence
	7a2_Burns correspondence
	7b1_Park Board Update September 2012
	7b2_2014WWRPEvalScores
	8a1_North Juanita Open Space Board Memo Sept 2012
	8a2_North Juanita Open Space Map
	8a3_North Juanita Open Space Proximity Map 2
	8b1_Park Board Memo_Rail Corridor Update Sept 2012
	8b2_CKC Council Report Aug 2012
	10a_Attach A
	10a_Attach B
	10a_Attach C
	10a_Attach D
	10a_Attach E 

	9a1_2012 Boat Laucnh Memo_Park Board
	9a2_Boat Launch Fee Comps 2012_Final



